
 
APPROVED Minutes of the Urbanna Town Council 

Regular Meeting of April 10, 2025 
Page 1 of 9 

APPROVED MINUTES 
TOWN OF URBANNA TOWN COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2025 
 
A regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Urbanna, Virginia, was held on the 10th day 
of April, 2025 beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of Town Hall located at 390 Virginia 
Street, Suite B in Urbanna, VA. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Goldsmith called the meeting to order at 6:00pm. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 2. APPROVAL OF ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION BY A COUNCIL MEMBER 
Not necessary 
 
AGENDA ITEM 3. ROLL CALL 
Marjorie Austin Absent 
Larry Chowning Present 
Alana Courtney Present 
Mayor Bill Goldsmith Present 
Merri Hanson Present 
Beth Justice Present 
Robbie Wilson Present 
Others Present: 
Ted Costin, Town Administrator (via phone) 
Michele Hutton, Town Treasurer 
Christine Branch, Town Clerk 
Members of the public 
 
AGENDA ITEM 4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
The Mayor led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 5. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF MEETING AGENDA 
Councilmember Hanson made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. 
Councilmember Justice seconded. The Mayor called for any discussion. All were in favor 
with none opposed. 
The motion passed 6-0 with 1 absent. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
6a. March 13, 2025 Draft Minutes 
6b. March 27, 2025 Draft Minutes 
 
Councilmember Hanson made a motion to approve both sets of minutes as presented. 
Councilmember Justice seconded. The Mayor called for any discussion. All were in favor 
with none opposed. 
The motion passed 6-0 with 1 absent. 
 
  



 
APPROVED Minutes of the Urbanna Town Council 

Regular Meeting of April 10, 2025 
Page 2 of 9 

AGENDA ITEM 7. PUBLIC HEARING 
There was no public hearing scheduled. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 8. REPORTS 
8a. STAFF REPORTS 
8a.1. Town Administrator 
Mr. Costin presented his report. Regarding the manhole issue, he said that VDOT will be installing 
the lifter rings, provided by HRSD. It is expected the project will be ongoing throughout the 
summer. 
 
Regarding the water runoff and overflow issue, he said HRSD will be at the April 24, 2025 Council 
Work Session to address questions and concerns. Mr. Costin said it is the landowner’s 
responsibility to make sure the ditches and pipes are kept clear from debris which could impede 
the flow of stormwater. 
 
Mr. Costin thanked Steve Hutton and Roy Kime for their work on the Well 6 project. A second 
extension has been filed due to delays and it has been approved. 
 
8a.2. Treasurer 
Ms. Hutton presented the February 2025 Treasurer’s report. She said she had just received 
payment for two tax liens and they have been removed. She and Maribel Kimble have been 
working together to collect past due water bills. 
 
8a.3. Town Clerk 
Ms. Branch presented her report and mentioned the non-material changes made to the February 
13, 2025 minutes. She said there are some minutes missing from 2020-2021 and she was able to 
put together at least a few details of those meetings by looking at past issues of the Sentinel.  
 
She, Ms. Hutton, and Ms. Kimble have been working on getting all the water customers entered 
into the Reverse 911 system along with the Middlesex Emergency Manager. Ms. Hutton mentioned 
that the next step is training on the Everbridge system which allows us to activate the system. 
 
8b. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
8b.1. Finance Committee 
Councilmember Wilson said the committee has been working on the budget and will present it to 
Council and the citizens at the April 24, 2025 meeting. 
 
8b.2. Water Committee 
No report. 
 
8b.3. Personnel Committee 
No report. 
 
8b.4. Events Committee 
Ms. Justice said the committee is currently working on the Independence Day celebration, which 
will be held on Saturday, July 5, 2025. Second Saturdays will begin on May 10, 2025 with the 
Michael Clark Band.  
 



 
APPROVED Minutes of the Urbanna Town Council 

Regular Meeting of April 10, 2025 
Page 3 of 9 

AGENDA ITEM 9. PUBLIC COMMENT 1 
There were no speakers at this time. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 10. COUNCIL COMMENT 1 
There were no council comments made at this time. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
11a. Virginia Street Terminus 
Mr. Costin presented a brief overview of the discussion from the March 27, 2025 Work Session 
and said there are new options with the MPPDC for Council to consider. 
 
11a.1. Taylor Ovide, Coastal Resilience Planner with the MPPDC 
Mr. Ovide introduced the programs available through the MPPDC. Their FIGHT THE FLOOD (FTF) 
program takes requests from both citizens and local governments and matches those requests 
with the grants they have available. Things such as home elevation, roadway flooding, stormwater 
issues, and living shorelines are just some of the things FTF covers. 
 
Some organizations that had projects planned have backed out so funds are now available for 
reimbursement. Mr. Costin will be working with Mr. Ovide on submitting some of the expenses for 
the marina shoreline for reimbursement since that project fits in with the FTF program. The 
Virginia Street Terminus project also fits.  
 
Mayor Goldsmith asked if there was any assurance that the funding is there. Mr. Ovide said it 
depends on the portion and handed out a brochure on the program (Attachment A). He said what 
is done is the choice of the citizen or government. FTF does not dictate what the applicant has to 
do within their project. 
 
Councilmember Hanson said there is concern over how what the Town does will affect the 
adjacent property (Oyster Harbor Condominiums) and asked if FTF would help us integrate with 
them. Mr. Ovide said they will help navigate the best they can. 
 
Councilmember Courtney asked if this was a one-time only deal and said there is concern because 
the condo association is about to begin installing a bulkhead on their adjacent shoreline. Mr. Ovide 
said funds are available now for whatever projects the Town wants to focus on. Natrx, a FTF 
program partner, will come out and do an engineering evaluation and would consider the adjacent 
properties. Ms. Courtney asked if the town is responsible for the ongoing maintenance of whatever 
is done. Mr. Ovide said yes. 
 
Councilmember Wilson asked if the FTF solutions and plantings would withstand foot traffic. Mr. 
Ovide said there are potential solutions for that such as installing decking. Councilmember Hanson 
asked if a PDC loan could be used on any potential decking, Mr. Ovide said yes. 
 
Councilmember Wilson asked if there were limits. Mr. Ovide said he thinks we could get enough 
funds to complete the project. 
 
Councilmember Chowning said pre-engineering needs to be done to make sure the condo and 
Town projects mesh. He said it is also important to have a professional engineer say whether or 
not our plan would affect the condo’s plan. 



 
APPROVED Minutes of the Urbanna Town Council 

Regular Meeting of April 10, 2025 
Page 4 of 9 

 
Councilmember Hanson made a motion to defer action on the Virginia Street Terminus 
until an engineering report from Natrx, in cooperation with MPPDC, is received and 
discussed with the MPPDC and the Oyster Bay Condo Association. Councilmember Wilson 
seconded. The Mayor called for any discussion. All were in favor with none opposed. 
The motion passed 6-0 with 1 absent. 
 
Councilmember Hanson asked about kayak access. Mr. Costin said they are still working on getting 
Northern access. In order to permanently move the fence (put supports in the ground), a permit is 
needed. A permit is also needed to remove vegetation to make the site accessible. This is an 
ongoing Eagle Scout project. 
 
Councilmember Hanson said you can’t get through the fence to the north side of the dock. Mr. 
Costin said we could remove the rails but he’s concerned that will increase people using private 
property to launch their kayaks. 
 
Mr. Costin said current kayak launch sites are: use the boat ramp, use the dinghy dock, or at the 
end of Virginia Street. He pointed out that the sign on the terminus property says No Parking. It 
does not say No Trespassing as some have been saying on social media.  
 
Councilmember Chowning said there is a possibility of a grant for a kayak launch but we have to 
know what we want to do and have a solid plan before we can apply. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12. NEW BUSINESS 
12a. Draft Administrative Policies 
12a.1. Vehicle Use  
12a.2. Information Technology  
Ms. Branch presented the draft policies and said she is working on converting all policies to this 
format. 
 
Councilmember Justice made a motion to approve the administrative polices on Vehicle Use 
and Information Technology as presented. Councilmember Wilson seconded. The Mayor 
called for any discussion. All were in favor with none opposed. 
The motion passed 6-0 with 1 absent. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13. PUBLIC COMMENT 2 
Sandy Sturgill of Oyster Road said her concerns had already been addressed during the meeting. 
 
Michael Binns of Oyster Road thanked Council for all their consideration in working with the 
condo association on the Virginia Street Terminus. He said there is a lot of silt going into the water 
and hopes it’s dealt with as soon as possible. 
 
Robert Montague of Virginia Street said his son has spent a lot of money on their dock and 
dredging and they don’t want the terminus issue to undo their work. He asked Council to consider 
selling the land to his son.  
 
AGENDA ITEM 14. COUNCIL RESPONSE TO PUBLIC COMMENT 2 
Councilmember Austin responded to Mr. Montague and said to make an offer. 



 
APPROVED Minutes of the Urbanna Town Council 

Regular Meeting of April 10, 2025 
Page 5 of 9 

 
Councilmember Chowning responded to Mr. Binns saying the Town needs a rock solid opinion 
from an engineering source on the potential effect of the terminus on the condo’s bulkhead. 
 
Councilmember Hanson said to remember that the silt and other challenges with the terminus are 
partially due to the damage done to the property by Docks of the Bay. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 15. COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS & REQUESTS 
Councilmember Wilson thanked the citizens in Deltaville who helped him look for a barge. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 16. CLOSED MEETING 
A closed meeting was not necessary. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 17. APPOINTMENTS 
No appointments were made. 
 
AGENDA ITEM 18. ADJOURN OR RECESS 
Councilmember Hanson made a motion to adjourn. All were in favor with none opposed. 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:10pm. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Christine H. Branch, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
Approved by Council: May 8, 2025 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
Christine H. Branch, Town Clerk 



 
APPROVED Minutes of the Urbanna Town Council 

Regular Meeting of April 10, 2025 
ATTACHMENT A 

Page 6 of 9 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

 



 
APPROVED Minutes of the Urbanna Town Council 

Regular Meeting of April 10, 2025 
ATTACHMENT A 

Page 7 of 9 



 
APPROVED Minutes of the Urbanna Town Council 

Regular Meeting of April 10, 2025 
ATTACHMENT A 

Page 8 of 9 



 
APPROVED Minutes of the Urbanna Town Council 

Regular Meeting of April 10, 2025 
ATTACHMENT A 

Page 9 of 9 

 


